Structure Rings of Singularities and Differential Equations

B.-W. Schulze, Boris Sternin* and Victor Shatalov*

Max-Planck-Arbeitsgruppe "Partielle Differentialgleichungen und komplexe Analysis" Universität Potsdam Am Neuen Palais 10 14469 Potsdam Germany

Moscow State University Department of Mathematics Vorob'evy Gory 119899 Moscow

Russia

Max-Planck-Institut für Mathematik Gottfried-Claren-Str. 26 53225 Bonn

Germany

• .

Structure Rings of Singularities and Differential Equations

Bert-Wolfgang Schulze,

MPAG "Analysis" Universität Potsdam e-mail: schulze@mpg-ana.uni-potsdam.de

&z

Boris Sternin^{*}, and Victor Shatalov^{*} Moscow State University

e-mail: boris@sternin.msk.su

October 20, 1996

Abstract

Local function rings near singular points of a manifold are considered. On this basis, the classification of singular points of the underlying manifold is introduced. The questions concerning behavior of solutions near singular points of the manifold are discussed.

Keywords: structure ring, manifolds with singularities, singular points, conical points, cuspidal points, resurgent asymptotics.

1

^{*}Supported by Max-Planck-Gesellshaft zur Förderung der Wissenschaften e.V., Arbeitsgruppe "Partielle Differentialgleichungen und komplexe Analysis" and Deutsche Forschungsgemeinschaft.

Contents

1	Examples and Motivations		4
	1.1	Circular cone	4
	1.2	Circular cusp	6
	1.3	Conclusions	8
2	Structure rings of singular points		
	2.1	Power stabilization	9
	2.2	Exponential stabilization of first order	10
	2.3	Exponential stabilization of an arbitrary order	11
	2.4	Strong exponential stabilization	11
3	Local rings of differential operators		12
	3.1	Power stabilization	12
	3.2	Exponential stabilization of first order	14
	3.3	Exponential stabilization of an arbitrary order	14
	3.4	Strong exponential stabilization	15
4	Riemannian metrices and geometry of singularities		16
	4.1	Power stabilization	17
	4.2	Exponential stabilization of first order	17
	4.3	Exponential stabilization of an arbitrary order	18
	4.4	Strong exponential stabilization	19
5	Concluding remarks 2		
	5.1	Week power tangency	20
	5.2	Types of asymptotics	21

Introduction

The investigation of partial differential equations on manifolds with singularities, originated from the well-known paper [1] by Agmon and Nirenberg on equation on the infinite cylinder being published as early as in 1963 have been developed further in papers of a lot of mathematicians. Having no aim of presenting a full history of the question, we mention here the paper [2] published in 1967 which has originated the investigation of differential equations in domains with conical points, as well as in a lot of other works (see [3] – [10], and the bibliography therein). However, these investigation were mainly concerned with singular points of the conical type (clearly, there were exceptions from this rule; we mention here the papers [11], [12], where boundary value problems with cusp-type points on the boundary are treated in some particular case).

The appearence in the recent time of a resurgent analysis — a powerful tool of investigation of asymptotic behavior of solutions to differential equations (both ordinary and in partial derivatives) allowed to begin the serious investigation of elliptic partial differential equations on manifolds with cusp-type singularities ([13], [14], [15].) However, the description of the type of singular points of the manifold was not quite satisfactory. The matter is that the considered manifolds are topologically equivalent to a cone

$$K = \{[0,1] \times \Omega\} / \{\{0\} \times \Omega\}$$

$$\tag{1}$$

with a smooth base Ω in a neighborhood of all such points (we consider here isolated singularities), and the only difference between conical and cuspidal singularities lies in the form of the differential operator in question. So, the operators with *conical degeneracy* are of the form

$$\hat{H} = r^{-m} H\left(r, \omega, -ir\frac{\partial}{\partial r}, -i\frac{\partial}{\partial \omega}\right), \qquad (2)$$

near the corresponding singular point of the manifold M, where (r, ω) are coordinates on K corresponding to representation (1) and m is an order of the operator \hat{H} ; in this case such a point is referred as a point of *conical singularity*. On the contrary, the operators of *cuspidal degeneracy* of order k are given by

$$\hat{H} = r^{-m(k+1)} H\left(r, \omega, -ir^{k+1}\frac{\partial}{\partial r}, -i\frac{\partial}{\partial \omega}\right)$$
(3)

with some integer k > 0; here we refer this point as a singular point of cuspidal type of order k.

So, the type of singularity is defined, in fact, by the class of differential operators considered in a neighborhood of the point in question. Clearly, such a description is possible, but it is preferrable to have a direct (structure) description of singularities of a manifold such that all the analysis and, in particular, the theory of differential equations is a consequence of this structure description.

This paper is an attempt to answer the question: what a point with the given type of singularity is? Clearly, if one considers a Riemannian manifold, then the type of singularity can be characterized by the type of degeneration of the considered Riemannian metrics in a neighborhood of a singular point of this manifold. However, the Riemannian structure is, clearly, an additional structure, and cannot be used as a basis of the description of singularities. This concernes also to the theory of differential equations. The Riemannian structure takes part only in the description of concrete differential operators connected with geometry of Riemannian manifolds such that the Beltrami-Laplace operator. Later on, another approach to the definition of a type of singular point is the notion of an embedded submanifold with singularities of some smooth manifold also is not quite satisfactory since it essentially depends on the embedding. At the same time, for investigation of manifolds with singularities by themselves one needs internal description of this notion.

Certainly, the most general description of a manifold (smooth or with singularities) is a description with the help of the *structure sheaf* of this manifold. All information about the manifold in question, including the form of differential operators, admissible Riemannian structures, and so on, must be expressed in terms of the structure sheaf.

• Since we are intended to consider manifolds smooth everywhere except for some discrete set of singular points, a ring of germs of the structure ring at some (arbitrary) singular point is of main interest for us. In what follows, this ring will be referred as a *structure ring* of the singular point in question or even simply as structure ring if the point in question is clear from the context.

Evidently, the structure ring determines all the analysis in a neighborhood of the given point: the class of Riemannian metrices, the ring of differential equations, etc. In particular, the different choice of structure rings leads to different classes of differential equations. Namely, for different structure rings we shall arrive at equations with "conical degeneracy", "cuspidal degeneracy", and a lot of other types of degeneracy which up to now have not been considered in the theory of differential equations. Some of them are considered in the present paper.

And the last remark. As we have already mentioned, in this paper we consider only isolated singularities. This is connected with the fact that the consideration of isolated singularities is crucial for constructing a general manifold with singularities of nonisolated type. The latter can be obtained from the formers with the help of direct product operation, as it will be explained below.

1 Examples and Motivations

To motivate the approach to the description of singular points of the manifolds with singularities, we consider two examples.

1.1 Circular cone

Let us consider a circular cone K with the vertex in the origin and opening θ embedded in the three-dimensional Carthesian space \mathbb{R}^3 (see Figure 1.) It seems to be natural to consider the restriction of the local structure ring $[C^{\infty}(\mathbb{R}^3)]_0$ as a structure ring $[C^{\infty}(K)]_0$ of the cone K at its vertex. So, the elements of $[C^{\infty}(K)]_0$ will be germs of functions in



Figure 1. Circular cone.

the coordinates (r, φ) having the form

$$F(r\sin\theta\cos\varphi, r\sin\theta\sin\varphi, r\cos\theta)$$

for different smooth functions F(x, y, z) in a neighborhood of the origin in \mathbb{R}^{3} .

However, there exists much better description of the above introduced local ring. To obtain this description, let us consider the Riemannian metrics

$$ds^2 = dr^2 + r^2 \sin^2 \theta d\varphi^2 \tag{4}$$

on K induced by the standard Riemannian metrics of the space \mathbb{R}^3 . One can see that this metrics is degenerated at the point r = 0. To resolve this degeneration, one can perform the variable change

$$r = e^{-t},\tag{5}$$

transforming metrics (4) to the form

$$ds^2 = e^{-2t} \left(dt^2 + \sin^2 \theta d\varphi^2 \right),$$

which becomes to be nondegenerated after dividing by an inessential factor e^{-2t} . So, the more convenient representation of the cone'K is not a representation of the form (1), but the representation of K as a one-point compactification of the infinite cylinder

$$K = [0, +\infty] \times S^1 \tag{6}$$

with the coordinates (t, φ) on it. For such representation, the elements of the local structure ring have the form

$$F\left(e^{-t}\sin\theta\cos\varphi, e^{-t}\sin\theta\sin\varphi, e^{-t}\cos\theta\right), \ F\in\left[C^{\infty}\left(\mathbf{R}^{3}\right)\right]_{C}$$

of smooth functions on the infinite cylinder given by (6) having exponential stabilization at infinity.

We remark also that such representation of the local ring gives an opportunity to define naturally the class of *differential operators* to be considered on the cone K. Namely, they must be obtained by the variable change (5) from differential operators of the canonical form

$$\hat{H} = H\left(e^{-t}, \varphi, -i\frac{\partial}{\partial t}, \frac{\partial}{\partial \varphi}\right)$$

with coefficients stabilizing with exponential speed (that is, belonging to the above defined local ring). This leads us to a class of differential operators of the form

$$\hat{H} = H\left(r,\varphi,-ir\frac{\partial}{\partial r},\frac{\partial}{\partial \varphi}\right)$$

exactly coinciding with operators (2) with conical degeneracy.

1.2 Circular cusp

Let us consider the circular cusp C_0 obtained by rotation of the parabola

$$x = z^{k+1}$$

of order k around the axis Oz (see Figure 2). Then elements of the restriction of the ring $[C^{\infty}(\mathbf{R}^3)]_0$ to C_0 have the form

$$F\left(z^{k+1}\cos\varphi, z^{k+1}\sin\varphi, z\right).$$

The corresponding Riemannian metrics is

$$ds^{2} = \left(1 + (k+1)^{2} z^{2k}\right) dz^{2} + z^{2k+2} d\varphi^{2}.$$
(7)

The variable change eliminating the degeneracy of the metrics (7) is

$$t = \frac{1}{kz^k}, \ z = \frac{1}{k^{1/k}t^{1/k}}.$$
(8)



Figure 2. Circular cusp.

The latter variable change transforms the metrics (7) to the form

$$ds^{2} = \left(\frac{1}{kt}\right)^{2(1+1/k)} \left[\left(1 + \frac{(k+1)^{2}}{k^{2}t^{2}}\right) dt^{2} + d\varphi^{2} \right]$$

which is evidently nondegenerated in a neighborhood of $t = \infty$.

Now the local ring $[C^{\infty}(C_0)]_0$ can be described as a ring of functions

 $F\left(t^{-1/k},\varphi\right), \ F\in C^{\infty}$

with power stabilization at infinity (with the speed $t^{-1/k}$.)

This description of the local ring leads us again to the description of differential operators which are naturally defined on the manifold near the cusp point. Namely, these must be the images of the operators

$$\hat{H} = H\left(\frac{1}{t^{1/k}}, \varphi, -i\frac{\partial}{\partial t}, -i\frac{\partial}{\partial \varphi}\right)$$

under the action of variable change (8). These operators have the form

$$\hat{H} = H\left(k^{1/k}z, \varphi, -iz^{k+1}\frac{\partial}{\partial z}, -i\frac{\partial}{\partial \varphi}\right),\,$$

which again coincide with (3).

1.3 Conclusions

of

The examples considered in the Introduction show that:

• The convenient *topological model* of the isolated singular point of a manifold is a one-point compactification

 $\dot{M}_{\text{loc}} = C \cup \{\infty\}$

$$C = \overline{\mathbf{R}_{+}} \times \Omega \tag{9}$$

with a smooth compact base Ω without boundary rather than a topological cone

$$K = \{ [0,1] \times \Omega \} / \{ \{ 0 \} \times \Omega \} .$$
(10)

Topological models (9) and (10) are homeomorphic to each other since a segment [0,1] is homeomorphic to the compactificated half-axis $\mathbf{R}_+ \cup \{\infty\}$ with 0 corresponding to ∞ , but the description of local rings looks more clear on the model M_{loc} .

• The local rings determining a type of an isolated singular point of M are described with the help of the speed of stabilization of functions given on the local model M_{loc} as $t \to \infty$. More exactly, if $\varphi(t)$ is a smooth function on \mathbf{R}_+ such that

$$\lim_{t\to 0}\varphi\left(t\right)=0,$$

(in what follows we refer $\varphi(t)$ as a weight function) then the appropriate candidate for the role of a local ring describing the type of the singular point under consideration is a set of functions

$$u(t,\omega) = F(\varphi(t),\omega), \ F(r,\omega) \in C^{\infty}([0,1] \times \Omega).$$
(11)

Here by ω we denote local coordinates on the manifold Ω . Clearly, the set of functions of the type (11) have to be modified up to a ring of functions closed with respect to differentiation so that this modified ring could serve as a local ring for the manifold M at the singular point in question.

• The ring of local differential operators on the manifold M_{loc} must be defined now as a ring of operators of the form

$$\sum_{j=0}^{m} \sum_{|\alpha| \le m-l} a_{j\alpha}(t,\omega) \left(-i\frac{\partial}{\partial t}\right)^{j} \left(-i\frac{\partial}{\partial \omega}\right)^{\alpha}$$
(12)

with coefficients from the local structure ring at the singular point. One more reason for the requirement that the local ring must be closed under the differentiation is that this requirement guarantees that the set of operators (12) form a ring (algebra.)

1

In the following section we construct some scale of local rings on M_{loc} describing a scale of types of isolated singularities of the manifold M. Clearly, the scale presented below does not pretend to be a complete classification of types of singular points of a manifold M with singularities. For example, one can consider singular points for which the speed of stabilization depends on the point ω of the base Ω . Besides it seems to be impossible to write down all weight functions $\varphi(t)$ of the above described type, so we restrict ourselves by consideration of the most interesting cases which appear in applications.

Further, as it was already mentioned in the Introduction, we consider here only isolated singularities of the underlying manifold M. More complicated singularities can be obtained by iterations with the help of direct product operations. For example, we can consider a wedge of the type $\varphi(t)$ as a direct product of the model manifold $(M_{\text{loc}}, \varphi(t))$ with a smooth manifold X or a corner of the type $(\varphi(t), \psi(t))$ as a product of $(M_{\text{loc}}, \varphi(t))$ by some manifold N having isolated singularities of the type $(M_{\text{loc}}, \psi(t))$.

2 Structure rings of singular points

2.1 Power stabilization

Let us consider the case of power stabilization, that is

$$\varphi(t) = t^{-\gamma}$$

for some positive value of γ (this value is fixed for each given type of singularity.) Denote by \mathcal{R}^{γ} the local ring

$$\mathcal{R}^{\gamma} = \left\{ u\left(t,\omega\right) = F\left(t^{-\gamma},\omega\right) \left| F\left(r,\omega\right) \in C^{\infty}\left(\left[0,1\right] \times \Omega\right) \right\} \right.$$

(we consider only germs of functions $u(t, \omega)$ at infinity.) This ring is not in general closed with respect to differentiation since

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial t}F\left(t^{-\gamma},\omega\right) = -\gamma t^{-\gamma-1}\frac{\partial F}{\partial r}\left(t^{-\gamma},\omega\right)$$

cannot be represented in the form $G(t^{-\gamma}, \omega)$ for a C^{∞} -function $G(r, \omega)$ on $[0, 1] \times \Omega$. So, to obtain a structure ring describing a singular point with power stabilization, one have to extend this ring up to a ring closed under differentiation. Such an extension is given by

$$\left\{u\left(t,\omega\right)=F\left(t^{-\gamma},\omega\right)+t^{-\gamma}G\left(t^{-\gamma},t^{-1},\omega\right)\left|F\left(r,\omega\right),G\left(r,\rho,\omega\right)\in C^{\infty}\right\}\right\}$$

we denote this ring by $\mathcal{R}_{loc}^{\gamma}$. The corresponding singular point of the manifold considered with such local ring will be called a *singular point of power stabilization*; in Section 4 we shall show that geometrically such point is a cusp point of degree $\beta = 1 + \gamma^{-1}$.

Remark 1 There is an important particular case of a singular point of power stabilization. This case corresponds to the values of γ of the form $\gamma = k^{-1}$ for positive integers $k \in \mathbb{Z}_+$. In this case one has

$$\mathcal{R}^{1/k} = \mathcal{R}_{ ext{loc}}^{1/k}$$

since the power t^{-1} can be represented as a C^{∞} -function of the variable $t^{-1/k}$:

$$t^{-1}=\left(t^{-1/k}\right)^k.$$

As we shall see below, geometrically this case corresponds to the caspidal point of integer degree k + 1.

2.2 Exponential stabilization of first order

This case (which is in some sense a limit case of power stabilization as $\alpha \to \infty$) is determined by the weight function

$$\varphi\left(t\right) = e^{-t}$$

As above, we consider a local ring

$$\mathcal{R}^{\exp} = \left\{ u\left(t,\omega\right) = F\left(e^{-t},\omega\right) | F\left(r,\omega\right) \in C^{\infty}\left(\left[0,1\right] \times \Omega\right) \right\}$$

Since

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial t}F\left(e^{-t},\omega\right) = -e^{-t}\frac{\partial F}{\partial r}\left(e^{-t},\omega\right),$$

this ring is closed under differentiations and, hence, can serve as a local ring on manifold with singularities corresponding to a singular point. It will be denoted also by

$$\mathcal{R}_{\text{loc}}^{\text{exp}} = \mathcal{R}^{\text{exp}}$$

The corresponding singular point of the manifold considered with such structure ring will be called a singular point of (simple) exponential stabilization. As we shall see in Section 4, such point is none more than a conical point of singularity of the manifold M under consideration.

Remark 2 With the same function $\varphi(t) = e^{-t}$, one can consider also a ring

$$\mathcal{R}_{\text{loc}}^{\exp,1} = \left\{ u\left(t,\omega\right) = F\left(e^{-t},t^{-1},\omega\right) | F\left(r,\rho,\omega\right) \in C^{\infty}\left(\left[0,1\right]\times\left[0,1\right]\times\Omega\right) \right\}.$$

Functions from this ring possess a power, not exponential, stabilization, but the consideration of singular points of this type is not quite senseless.

2.3 Exponential stabilization of an arbitrary order

For construction of such a ring, one have to consider the weight function

$$\varphi\left(t\right) = e^{-t^{\gamma}} \tag{13}$$

for a real positive γ . The local ring of functions with this type of stabilization can be described as follows:

$$\mathcal{R}^{\gamma,\exp} = \left\{ u\left(t,\omega\right) = F\left(e^{-t^{\gamma}},\omega\right) | F\left(r,\omega\right) \in C^{\infty}\left(\left[0,1\right] \times \Omega\right) \right\}.$$

This ring is not closed with respect to the differentiation since

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial t}F\left(e^{-t^{\gamma}},\omega\right) = -\gamma t^{\gamma-1}e^{-t^{\gamma}}\frac{\partial F}{\partial r}\left(e^{-t^{\gamma}},\omega\right)$$

The closure of this ring is given by

$$\mathcal{R}_{\text{loc}}^{\gamma, \text{exp}} = \left\{ u\left(t, \omega\right) = F\left(e^{-t^{\gamma}}, \omega\right) + t^{N\gamma} e^{-t^{\gamma}} G\left(t^{-1}, t^{-\gamma}, e^{-t^{\gamma}}, \omega\right) \\ |F\left(r, \omega\right), G\left(r_{1}, r_{2}, r_{3}, \omega\right) \in C^{\infty} \right\}.$$

This is exactly the structure ring corresponding to speed of decay (13). The corresponding singular point of the manifold considered with such local ring will be called a singular point of exponential stabilization of degree γ .

The important particular case of this singularity type corresponds to integer values of $\gamma = k$. Since in this case the power t^{γ} is a C^{∞} -function of the variable t^{-1} , the description of the structure ring for such values of γ can be simplified. Namely, we have

$$\mathcal{R}_{\text{loc}}^{k,\text{exp}} = \left\{ u\left(t,\omega\right) = F\left(e^{-t^{k}},\omega\right) + t^{N}e^{-t^{k}}G\left(t^{-1},e^{-t^{\gamma}},\omega\right) \\ |F\left(r,\omega\right),G\left(r_{1},r_{2},\omega\right) \in C^{\infty} \right\}$$

The geometry of such kind of singularity will be described in Section 4; as far as we know, the singularities of this type have not been examined in the literature (this concernes also the next type of singularity.)

2.4 Strong exponential stabilization

For constructing singular points of strong exponential stabilization we consider the weight function

$$\varphi\left(t\right)=e^{-e^{t}}.$$

Consider the local ring

$$\mathcal{R}^{\mathbf{s}, \mathbf{exp}} = \left\{ u\left(t, \omega\right) = F\left(e^{-e^{t}}, \omega\right) | F\left(r, \omega\right) \in C^{\infty}\left([0, 1] \times \Omega\right) \right\}.$$

This ring is not closed with respect to the differentiation since

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial t}F\left(e^{-e^{t}},\omega\right) = -e^{t}e^{-e^{t}}\frac{\partial F}{\partial r}\left(e^{-e^{t}},\omega\right).$$

The closure of this ring up to a ring closed under differentiation is given by

$$\mathcal{R}_{\text{loc}}^{s,\text{exp}} = \left\{ u\left(t,\omega\right) = F\left(e^{-e^{t}},\omega\right) + P_{N}\left(e^{t}\right)e^{-e^{t}}G\left(e^{-e^{t}},\omega\right) \\ |F\left(r,\omega\right), G\left(r,\omega\right) \in C^{\infty} \right\}.$$

This is exactly the structure ring corresponding to a singular point of strong exponential stabilization. The reason why we have included into consideration this type of singular points will be clear in the next section.

3 Local rings of differential operators

In this section, we come back to the conical model of a manifold with singularities near an isolated singular point. We recall that topologically the model for singularities of all the above described types is the cone

$$K = \{ [0,1] \times \Omega \} / \{ \{0\} \times \Omega \}.$$
(14)

To rewrite the definition of a local ring to this model it suffices to use the variable change

$$r=\varphi\left(t\right) ,$$

where (r, ω) are coordinates on the cone K corresponding to representation (14). Our aim is to describe the form of differential operators corresponding to different types of singular points in terms of the coordinates (r, ω) .

3.1 Power stabilization

First of all we remark that if we use the standard local representation of M near its singular point in the form of one-point compactification of a half-cylinder, then the form of differential operators is quite clear. Namely, any differential operator of order m must be represented in the form

$$\hat{H} = \sum_{j=0}^{m} \sum_{|\alpha| \le m-j} a_{j\alpha}(t,\omega) \left(-i\frac{\partial}{\partial t}\right)^{j} \left(-i\frac{\partial}{\partial \omega}\right)^{\alpha}$$
(15)

with the coefficients $a_{j\alpha}(t,\omega)$ from $\mathcal{R}^{\gamma}_{loc}$ near each point of power stabilization of degree γ . The only thing rest is to perform the variable change

 $r = t^{-\gamma}$

in expression (15) of the differential operator \hat{H} . Since for any smooth function $f(t,\omega) = F(t^{-\gamma},\omega)$ we have

$$\frac{\partial f}{\partial t}(t,\omega) = -\gamma t^{-\gamma-1} \frac{\partial F}{\partial r}(t^{-\gamma},\omega) = -\gamma r^{1+1/\gamma} \frac{\partial F}{\partial r}(t^{-\gamma},\omega).$$

So,

$$-i\frac{\partial}{\partial t}\longmapsto i\gamma r^{1+1/\gamma}\frac{\partial}{\partial r}$$

and, hence, operator (15) can be rewritten in the form

$$\hat{H} = \sum_{j=0}^{m} \sum_{|\alpha| \le m-j} b_{j\alpha} \left(r^{-1/\gamma}, \omega \right) \left(-ir^{1+1/\gamma} \frac{\partial}{\partial r} \right)^{j} \left(-i\frac{\partial}{\partial \omega} \right)^{\alpha}$$

where $b_{j\alpha}(t,\omega) = (-\gamma)^{|\alpha|} a_{j\alpha}(t,\omega)$ are functions from $\mathcal{R}^{\gamma}_{\text{loc}}$:

$$b_{j\alpha} \left(r^{-1/\gamma}, \omega \right) = b'_{j\alpha} \left(t^{-\gamma}, \omega \right) + t^{-\gamma} b''_{j\alpha} \left(t^{-\gamma}, t^{-1}, \omega \right) \Big|_{t=r^{-1/\gamma}}$$
$$= b'_{j\alpha} \left(r, \omega \right) + r b''_{j\alpha} \left(r, r^{1/\gamma}, \omega \right)$$

with some C^{∞} -functions $b'_{j\alpha}(r,\omega)$ and $b''_{j\alpha}(r,\rho,\omega)$. Finally, we obtain a form of differential operator near a singular point of power stabilization as

$$\hat{H} = \sum_{j=0}^{m} \sum_{|\alpha| \le m-j} \left(b'_{j\alpha} \left(r, \omega \right) + r b''_{j\alpha} \left(r, r^{1/\gamma}, \omega \right) \right) \left(-ir^{1+1/\gamma} \frac{\partial}{\partial r} \right)^{j} \left(-i\frac{\partial}{\partial \omega} \right)^{\alpha}.$$
 (16)

Consider now the particular case $\gamma = 1/k$, $k \in \mathbb{Z}_+$. In this case, as it follows from Remark 1, the function $rb''_{j\alpha}$ can be omitted, and we arrive at the representation of a differential operator \hat{H} of the form

$$\hat{H} = \sum_{j=0}^{m} \sum_{|\alpha| \le m-j} b_{j\alpha}(r,\omega) \left(-ir^{1+k}\frac{\partial}{\partial r}\right)^{j} \left(-i\frac{\partial}{\partial \omega}\right)^{\alpha},$$

which coincides with the form (3) of an operator with cuspidal degeneracy up to an inessential factor $r^{-m(k+1)}$. This gives rise to a guess that such points are exactly the singular points of the manifold of the cuspidal type of order k. This guess will be confirmed in the next section.

Remark 3 The above considerations show, that the correct form of a differential operator at a cuspidal point of noninteger order is (16).

3.2 Exponential stabilization of first order

To obtain the form of differential operator for this type of stabilization, we have to perform the variable change

$$r = e^{-t} \tag{17}$$

in expression (15). Since for any function of the form $f(t,\omega) = F(e^{-t},\omega)$ we have

$$\frac{\partial f}{\partial t}(t,\omega) = -e^{-t}\frac{\partial F}{\partial r}\left(e^{-t},\omega\right) = -r\frac{\partial F}{\partial r}\left(r,\omega\right),$$

hence, the operator $-i\partial/\partial t$ is transformed into the operator

$$-i\frac{\partial}{\partial t}\longmapsto ir\frac{\partial}{\partial r},$$

under the action of the variable change (17). Having in mind the fact that the coefficients of operator (15) must belong to the ring \mathcal{R}_{loc}^{exp} , we see that this operator can be represented in the form

$$\hat{H} = \sum_{j=0}^{m} \sum_{|\alpha| \le m-j} b_{j\alpha}(r,\omega) \left(-ir\frac{\partial}{\partial r}\right)^{j} \left(-i\frac{\partial}{\partial \omega}\right)^{\alpha},$$

(where $b_{j\alpha}(r,\omega) \in C^{\infty}([0,1] \times \Omega)$) of an operator with conical degeneracy (up to an inessential factor r^{-m} .) This allows us to refer singular points with exponential stabilization as conical points of a manifold M. This will be confirmed from the geometrical viewpoint in the next section.

3.3 Exponential stabilization of an arbitrary order

Let us derive the form of differential operator near a singular point of exponential stabilization of degree γ . Performing the variable change

$$r = e^{-t}$$

in the expression (15), we see that the operator $-i\partial/\partial t$ is transformed into the operator

$$-i\frac{\partial}{\partial t}\longmapsto i\gamma\left(\ln\frac{1}{r}\right)^{1-1/\gamma}r\frac{\partial}{\partial r}$$

with some integers $N_{j\alpha}$, and, hence, operator (15) is transformed to an operator

$$\hat{H} = \sum_{j=0}^{m} \sum_{|\alpha| \le m-j} a_{j\alpha} \left(\left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{1/\gamma}, \omega \right) \left(i\gamma r \left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{1-1/\gamma} \frac{\partial}{\partial r} \right)^{j} \left(-i \frac{\partial}{\partial \omega} \right)^{\alpha}$$

,

with $a_{j\alpha}(t,\omega) \in \mathcal{R}_{loc}^{\gamma,exp}$. This means that

$$a_{j\alpha}(t,\omega) = a'_{j\alpha}\left(e^{-t^{\gamma}},\omega\right) + t^{N_{j\alpha}\gamma}e^{-t^{\gamma}}a''_{j\alpha}\left(t^{-1},t^{-\gamma},e^{-t^{\gamma}},\omega\right),$$

and, hence, operator (15) takes the form

$$\hat{H} = \sum_{j=0}^{m} \sum_{|\alpha| \le m-j} \left(a'_{j\alpha}(r,\omega) + \left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{N_{j\alpha}} a''_{j\alpha} \left(\left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{-1/\gamma}, \left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{-1}, r, \omega \right) \right) \\ \times \left(i\gamma r \left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{1-1/\gamma} \frac{\partial}{\partial r} \right)^{j} \left(-i\frac{\partial}{\partial \omega} \right)^{\alpha}.$$
(18)

As far as we know, the operators of this kind were not considered in the literature (for $\gamma = 1$ we obtain the simple exponential stabilization considered in the previous section, the case $0 < \gamma < 1$ lyies between simple exponential stabilization and power stabilization, and the case $\gamma > 1$ corresponds to more strong exponential stabilization than a simple one.) The geometry of singular points of this type will be considered in the next section.

3.4 Strong exponential stabilization

This case is interesting mainly due to the fact that it in some sense is a *limit case* of a point with exponential stabilization with degree γ as $\gamma \to \infty$. We shall not present here all the computations for this case and simply write down the answer. Namely, the form of a differential operator in this case is

$$\hat{H} = \sum_{j=0}^{m} \sum_{|\alpha| \le m-j} \left(a'_{j\alpha}(r,\omega) + r P_N^{j\alpha}\left(\ln\frac{1}{r}\right) a''_{j\alpha}(r,\omega) \right) \\ \times \left(ir \left(\ln\frac{1}{r}\right) \frac{\partial}{\partial r} \right)^j \left(-i \frac{\partial}{\partial \omega} \right)^{\alpha}.$$

This operator can be obtained from operator (18) with the help of the limit $\gamma \to \infty$. The corresponding geometry will be considered in the next section.

4 Riemannian metrices and geometry of singularities

In this section, we shall consider how local rings introduced in Section 2 define the class of Riemannian metrices compatible with these rings. First of all, it is clear that admissible metrices on the one-point compactification of the infinite cylinder

$$K = [0, +\infty] \times \Omega$$

have the form

$$ds^{2} = c(t) \left(g_{00}(t,\omega) dt^{2} + \sum_{i,j=1}^{n} g_{ij}(t,\omega) d\omega^{i} d\omega^{j} \right)$$
(19)

(we have taken into account the structure of the direct product on K.) The normalizing factor c(t) must be chosen such that the distance from the infinite point of one-point compactification to any finite point of K is finite. This can be achieved in the following way.

Let us perform the variable change

$$r = \varphi(t), t = \varphi^{-1}(r)$$

(we recall that the function φ directly multiplied by the identity diffeomorphism of Ω determines a diffeomorphism between K and the cone

$$K = \{[0,1] \times \Omega\} / \{\{0\} \times \Omega\}$$

without its vertex such that the vertex of the cone comes to the infinity point of one-point compactification.) Metrics (19) will be transformed into the metrics

$$ds^{2} = c(t) \left(\left(\varphi'(t) \right)^{-2} g_{00}(t,\omega) dr^{2} + \sum_{i,j=1}^{n} g_{ij}(t,\omega) d\omega^{i} d\omega^{j} \right) \bigg|_{t=\varphi^{-1}(r)},$$

and the required normalization will be achieved if we put

$$c(t)(\varphi'(t))^{-2} = 1.$$
 (20)

Remark 4 The latter condition can be replaced with the requirement that the coefficient of dr is integrable up to r = 0. In most cases condition (20) will be sufficient.

Let us consider this procedure for all above defined types of stabilization.

4.1 Power stabilization

Here we have

$$\varphi\left(t\right)=t^{-\gamma},$$

and, hence, the general expression for the Riemannian metrics has the form (19) with $g_{00}(t,\omega), g_{ij}(t,\omega)$ from the ring $\mathcal{R}_{loc}^{\gamma}$. Hence, this expression has the form

$$ds^{2} = c(t) \left[\left(g_{00}^{\prime} \left(t^{-\gamma}, \omega \right) + t^{-\gamma} g_{00}^{\prime\prime} \left(t^{-\gamma}, t^{-1}, \omega \right) \right) dt^{2} + \sum_{i,j=1}^{n} g_{ij}^{\prime} \left(t^{-\gamma}, \omega \right) + t^{-\gamma} g_{ij}^{\prime\prime} \left(t^{-\gamma}, t^{-1}, \omega \right) d\omega^{i} d\omega^{j} \right],$$

or, after the variable change $r = t^{-\gamma}$,

$$\begin{split} ds^2 &= c\left(r^{-1/\gamma}\right) \left[\gamma^{-2} r^{-2(1+1/\gamma)} \left(g_{00}'\left(r,\omega\right) + rg_{00}''\left(r,r^{\gamma},\omega\right)\right) dr^2 \\ &+ \sum_{i,j=1}^n \left(g_{ij}'\left(r,\omega\right) + rg_{ij}''\left(r,r^{\gamma},\omega\right)\right) \, d\omega^i d\omega^j \right]. \end{split}$$

Taking into account relation (20), we obtain finally

$$ds^{2} = \left[\left(g_{00}'(r,\omega) + rg_{00}''(r,r^{\gamma},\omega)\right) dr^{2} + \gamma^{2}r^{2(1+1/\gamma)} \sum_{i,j=1}^{n} \left(g_{ij}'(r,\omega) + rg_{ij}''(r,r^{\gamma},\omega)\right) d\omega^{i}d\omega^{j} \right].$$

In the special case $\gamma = 1/k, k \in \mathbb{Z}_+$, we have

$$ds^{2} = \left[g_{00}(r,\omega) dr^{2} + r^{2(1+k)} \sum_{i,j=1}^{n} g_{ij}(r,\omega) d\omega^{i} d\omega^{j} \right];$$

we remark that the metrix (7) om the cusp of degree k has exactly this form. So, the power stabilization corresponds geometrically to cusps of power degree.

4.2 Exponential stabilization of first order

Having in mind that

$$\varphi\left(t\right)=e^{-t},$$

we write down the expression of the general form of the metrics near a singular point with exponential stabilization of the manifold M:

$$ds^{2} = c(t) \left(g_{00} \left(e^{-t}, \omega \right) dt^{2} + \sum_{i,j=1}^{n} g_{ij} \left(e^{-t}, \omega \right) d\omega^{i} d\omega^{j} \right)$$

(we have taken into account that the coefficients g_{00} , g_{ij} have to be chosen from the ring \mathcal{R}^{exp} .) After the variable change

$$r=e^{-t},$$

we arrive at the expression

$$ds^{2} = c\left(\ln\frac{1}{r}\right)\left(r^{-2}g_{00}\left(e^{-t},\omega\right)dt^{2} + \sum_{i,j=1}^{n}g_{ij}\left(e^{-t},\omega\right)d\omega^{i}d\omega^{j}\right).$$

Using (20), we obtain finally

$$ds^{2} = g_{00} \left(e^{-t}, \omega \right) dt^{2} + r^{2} \sum_{i,j=1}^{n} g_{ij} \left(e^{-t}, \omega \right) d\omega^{i} d\omega^{j},$$

which includes, in particular, the expression (4) for a metrix on the circular cone. Hence, we see that the exponential stabilization corresonds to the conical singularities.

4.3 Exponential stabilization of an arbitrary order

Let us find out what geometry corresponds to the exponential stabilization with an arbitrary degree $\gamma > 1$. First, let us derive the general expression for a Riemannian metrics near a singular point of this type. Since the coefficients g_{ij} of this metrics must be chosen from $\mathcal{R}_{loc}^{\gamma,exp}$, we have

$$ds^{2} = c(t) \left[\left(g_{00}' \left(e^{-t^{\gamma}}, \omega \right) + t^{N_{00}\gamma} e^{-t^{\gamma}} g_{00}'' \left(t^{-1}, t^{-\gamma}, e^{-t^{\gamma}}, \omega \right) \right) dt^{2} + \sum_{i,j=1}^{n} \left(g_{ij}' \left(e^{-t^{\gamma}}, \omega \right) + t^{N_{ij}\gamma} e^{-t^{\gamma}} g_{ij}'' \left(t^{-1}, t^{-\gamma}, e^{-t^{\gamma}}, \omega \right) \right) d\omega^{i} d\omega^{j} \right],$$

where N_{ij} are some nonnegative integers. Having in mind that $r = e^{-t^{\gamma}}$, and using the relation (20), we obtain

$$ds^{2} = \left[\left(g_{00}'(r,\omega) + r \left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{N} g_{00}'' \left(\left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{-1/\gamma}, \left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{-1}, r, \omega \right) \right) dr^{2} + \gamma^{2} r^{2} \left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{2(1-1/\gamma)} \sum_{i,j=1}^{n} \left(g_{ij}'(r,\omega) + r \left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{N} g_{ij}'' \left(\left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{-1/\gamma}, \left(\ln \frac{1}{r} \right)^{-1}, r, \omega \right) \right) d\omega^{i} d\omega^{j}.$$
(21)



Figure 3. Week smoothness and week cusp.

Now let us try to construct an embedding of some two-dimensional surface into \mathbb{R}^3 for which the induced metrics have the form (21). To do this, we consider the surface S in \mathbb{R}^3 obtained by rotation of the curve

$$x = z \left(\ln \frac{1}{z} \right)^{\delta}$$

with some real δ around the Oz axis (see Figure 3). One can easily compute the expression for the Riemannian metrics on S inducer from \mathbb{R}^3 :

$$ds^{2} = \left\{ 1 + \left[\left(\ln \frac{1}{z} \right)^{\delta} - \delta \left(\ln \frac{1}{z} \right)^{\delta-1} \right] \right\} dz^{2} + z^{2} \left(\ln \frac{1}{z} \right)^{2\delta} d\varphi^{2},$$

which coincides with (21) for $\delta = 1 - 1/\gamma$. So, the considered type of singularity corresponds to a surface with week smoothness at its singular point for $\delta < 0$ (see Figure 3 a)), and with week cusp for $\delta > 0$ (see Figure 3 b)); in the last case the latter expression needs some renormalization (cf. Remark 4 above.)

4.4 Strong exponential stabilization

For this case one has

$$ds^{2} = \left\{ \left[g'_{00}(r,\omega) + rP^{(00)}_{N_{00}}\left(\ln\frac{1}{r}\right)g''_{00}(r,\omega) \right] \right\}$$

$$+\sum_{i,j=1}^{n} \left[g_{ij}'\left(r,\omega\right) + rP_{N_{ij}}^{\left(ij\right)}\left(\ln\frac{1}{r}\right)g_{ij}''\left(r,\omega\right)\right]d\omega^{i}d\omega^{j},$$

where $P_{N_{00}}^{(00)}$, $P_{N_{ij}}^{(ij)}$ are polynomials of degree N_{00} , N_{ij} , respectively. The corresponding embedded surface can be obtained as a rotation of the curve

$$x = z \ln \frac{1}{z}$$

around the Oz axis. The Riemannian metrics induced from \mathbb{R}^3 is

$$ds^{2} = \left[1 + \left(\ln\frac{1}{z} - 1\right)^{2}\right]dz^{2} + z^{2}\left(\ln\frac{1}{z}\right)^{2}d\varphi^{2}$$

(we leave all the computations to the reader.) This surface is drawn on Figure 3 b) with $\delta = 1$.

5 Concluding remarks

5.1 Week power tangency

Here we consider the case of a two-dimensional surface in \mathbb{R}^3 obtained by the rotation of the curve

$$x = z^{\beta}$$

for $0 < \beta < 1$. It is easy to see that the induced metrics in this case has the form

$$ds^{2} = \left[1 + \beta^{2} z^{2(\beta-1)}\right] dz^{2} + z^{2\beta} d\varphi^{2}.$$

Since $\beta - 1 < 0$, we transform this expression in the following way:

$$ds^{2} = z^{2(\beta-1)} \left\{ \left[z^{2(1-\beta)} + \beta^{2} \right] dz^{2} + z^{2} d\varphi^{2} \right\},\$$

which corresponds to the stabilization speed

$$\varphi\left(t\right)=e^{-\beta t}.$$

This can be confirmed also by a form of the Beltrami-Laplace operator on this surface:

$$\Delta_g = z^{-2\beta} \left\{ \frac{1}{z^{2(1-\beta)} + \beta^2} \left(z \frac{\partial}{\partial z} \right)^2 - \frac{(1-\beta) z^{2(1-\beta)}}{\left(z^{2(1-\beta)} + \beta^2 \right)^2} \times \left(z \frac{\partial}{\partial z} \right) + \frac{\partial^2}{\partial \varphi^2} \right\}.$$

The details of the consideration of this example are left to the reader.

5.2 Types of asymptotics

Here we consider the types of asymptotic expansions for solutions to differential equations

$$\hat{H}u = 0 \tag{22}$$

for differential operator \hat{H} near points of singularity of underlying manifold M of different types. It will be convenient to deal with these operators written on the one-point compactification of a half-cylinder

$$C = \overline{\mathbf{R}_+} \times \Omega$$

as on the local model. Then equation (22) can be rewritten in the form

$$\sum_{j=0}^{m} \sum_{|\alpha| \le m-j} a_{j\alpha}(t,\omega) \left(-i\frac{\partial}{\partial t}\right)^{j} \left(-i\frac{\partial}{\partial \omega}\right)^{\alpha} u = 0,$$

where the coefficients belong to the corresponding local ring. Roughly speeking, these functions are functions of the type

$$a_{j\alpha}(t,\omega) = A_{j\alpha}(\varphi(t),\omega)$$

(the closing of the ring in question with respect to the differentiation will not affect our conclusions) with some C^{∞} -functions $A_{j\alpha}(r,\omega)$. The soluions to equation (22) with constant coefficients are exponentials $e^{\lambda t}$. Hence, as it follows from the paper [16], solutions to equation (22) will have resurgent type (see [13], [14]) if and only if the decay of the function $\varphi(t)$ is weaker than exponential one. So, it is clear that one should obtain resurgent asymptotics in the caspidal types of singularities and only conormal type asymptotics in all cases with stronger speed of stabilization. These asymptotic expansions can be obtained by the scheme described in [17], [13], and the finiteness theorems (Fredholm property) — by noncommutative analysis methods (see [14], [15]).

References

- S. Agmon and L. Nirenberg. Properties of solutions of ordinary differential equations in Banach space. Comm. Pure Appl. Math., 16, 1963, 121 – 239.
- [2] V. A. Kondrat'ev. Boundary problems for elliptic equations in domains with conical or angular points. Trans. of Moscow Math. Soc., 16, 1967, 287 - 313.
- [3] B. Sternin. *Elliptic operators on manifolds with singularities*. Moscow Institute of Electronic Engineering, Moscow, 1972.

- [4] B.-W. Schulze. Pseudodifferential Operators on Manifolds with Singularities. North-Holland, Amsterdam, 1991.
- [5] R. Melrose. Analysis on manifolds with corners. Lecture Notes. MIT, Cambridge, MA, 1988. Preprint.
- [6] W. G. Mazja, S. A. Nazarow, and B. A. Plamenewski. Asymptotische Theorie elliptischer Randwertaufgaben in singulär gestörten Gebieten I, II. Matematische Monographien 82. Academy-Verlag, Berlin, 1991.
- [7] B.-W. Schulze. Pseudo-Differential Boundary Value Problems, Conical Singularities and Asymptotics, volume 4 of Mathematics Topics. Akademie Verlag, Berlin, 1994.
- [8] S. A. Nazarov and B. A. Plamenevsky. Elliptic Problems in Domains with Piecewise Smooth Boundaries. De Gruyter Expositions in Mathematics, 13. Walter de Gruyter Publishers, Berlin – New York, 1994.
- [9] E. Schrohe and B.-W. Schulze. Boundary value problems in boutet de monvel's algebra for manifolds with conical singularities i. In *Pseudodifferential Operators and Mathematical Physics. Advances in Partial Differential Equations 1*, 1994, pages 97 209. Academie Verlag, Berlin.
- [10] E. Schrohe and B.-W. Schulze. Boundary value problems in boutet de monvel algebra for manifolds with conical singularities ii. In Boundary Value Problems, Deformation Quantization, Schrödinger Operators. Advances in Partial Differential Equations, 1995, pages 70-205. Akademie Verlag, Berlin.
- [11] V. G. Maz'ya and B. A. Plamenevskii. On the asymptotic solution of the Dirichlet problem near the isolated singularity of the boundary. Vestnik Leningrad Univ. Math., , No. 13, 1977. English transl. in: Vestnik Leningrad Univ. Math. 10 (1982), 295 302.
- [12] V. G. Maz'ya and B. A. Plamenevskii. On the asymptotic of solutions of differential equations with operator coefficients. DAN SSSR, 196, 1971, 512 -515. English transl. in: Soviet Math. Dokl. 12 (1971).
- [13] B.-W. Schulze, B. Sternin, and V. Shatalov. Asymptotic Solutions to Differential Equations on Manifolds with Cusps. Max-Planck Institut für Mathematik, Bonn, 1996. Preprint MPI 96-89.
- [14] B.-W. Schulze, B. Sternin, and V. Shatalov. An Operator Algebra on Manifolds with Cusp-Type Singularities. Max-Planck Institut f
 ür Mathematik, Bonn, 1996. Preprint MPI 96-111.

- [15] B.-W. Schulze, B. Sternin, and V. Shatalov. Opreator Algebras on Cuspidal Wedges. Max-Planck Institut für Mathematik, Bonn, 1996. Preprint, to be published.
- [16] B. Sternin and V. Shatalov. Deformations of Resurgent Representations and Exact Asymptotics of Solutions to Differential Equations. Max-Planck-Institut für Mathematik, Bonn, 1996. Preprint MPI 96-132.
- [17] B.-W.Schulze, B. Sternin, and V. Shatalov. Differential Equations on Manifols with Singularities in Classes of Resurgent Functions. Max-Planck-Institut für Mathematik, Bonn, 1995. Preprint MPI/95-88.

Nice – Potsdam